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So long as we have enough people in this country to fight for their rights, we’ll be called a democracy 
Roger Baldwin, ACLU Founder 

 
November 9, 2009 
 
Via facsimile and first class mail 
 
Mr. Gary Williams 
Franklin County Superintendent 
P.O. Box 610  
500 Coffee Avenue NE  
Russellville, AL 35653  
Fax: 256-331-0069 
 
Dear Superintendent Williams: 

 
 We have been contacted by Kathy Baker, whose niece Cynthia attends Tharptown High 
School in the Franklin County School District (the “District”).  Ms. Baker has informed us that 
Principal Odom has prohibited Ms. Baker’s niece from exercising her constitutional right to bring a 
same-sex date to the prom.  Ms. Baker has also informed us that she notified your office of Principal 
Odom’s prohibition against Cynthia from bringing her same-sex date to the prom and that the 
District refuses to remedy the situation. 
 
 We are writing to inform the District that preventing a student from bringing a same-sex date 
to the prom constitutes an unlawful act against Cynthia and the other gay and lesbian students in 
your District.  As you should know based on very recent case law in Alabama, students have the 
right under the First Amendment to bring a same-sex date to the prom. See Collins v. Scottsboro 
City Board of Education, CV-2008-90 (38th Judicial District) (enclosed for your convenience); see 
also Fricke v. Lynch, 491 F. Supp. 381 (D.R.I. 1980).  Moreover, the U.S. Supreme Court has ruled 
that a policy or act of a public entity (like a public school) that’s based on animosity or prejudice 
towards gay people violates equality rights guaranteed to all Americans by the 14th Amendment.  
See Romer v. Evans, 517 U.S. 620 (1996). 
 

But whether based on prejudice or not, it is unconstitutional to exclude same-sex couples 
from school dances.  In Fricke v. Lynch the principal being sued testified in court that the school’s 
prom policy was based on concern about possible disruption and violence at the prom in reaction to 
the participation of a gay couple. 

 
The court in that case was convinced of the sincerity of the principal’s concern but ruled that 

the Constitution required the school to take steps to protect the couple’s free expression rather than 
to stifle it. “To rule otherwise would completely subvert free speech in the schools by granting other 
students a ‘heckler’s veto’, allowing them to decide through prohibited and violent methods what 
speech will be heard.” Fricke, supra; see also Holloman ex. rel. Holloman v. Harland, 370 F.3d 
1252, 1273 (11th Cir. 2004). 



 
Finally, Ms. Baker has informed us that this may not be the first instance where Principal 

Odom has suppressed her niece’s First Amendment rights.  Specifically, Principal Odom ordered 
Cynthia to remove a sticker that simply stated, “I’m a lesbian.”  Such an act of censorship infringes 
on the constitutional rights of students to express peacefully and appropriately their sexual 
orientation and their political support for gay and lesbian people. Gillman v. School Board for 
Holmes County, Florida, 567 F.Supp.2d 1359 (N.D. Fla. 2008) (unlawful for school districts to 
censor t-shirts, stickers, pins, etc. showing support for gay rights and expressing a student’s sexual 
orientation). 

 
We request that the District and Principal Odom immediately permit Cynthia to bring her 

same-sex date to the prom.  We further request that the District make clear to Principal Odom and all 
other educators in the District that is it unlawful to censor peaceful and appropriate expressions by 
students of their sexual orientation and support for gay rights. 

 
We would appreciate a response by Friday, November 20, 2009, so that we may determine 

whether we will have to pursue our legal options. 
 

Respectfully Yours, 
 

     

 
Christine P. Sun, Senior Counsel 
ACLU LGBT Project 
Allison Neal, Staff Attorney 
ACLU of Alabama 

 
Henry F. Sherrod III  
ACLU of Alabama Cooperating Counsel 

 
 

cc: Principal Gary Odom 
Ralton Baker, School Board Member 
T.J. Bragwell, School Board Vice-Chairperson 
Randy Hester, School Board Chairperson 
Billy Weeks, School Board Member 
Ralph Winchester, School Board Member 

 












